
Grand River Conservation Authority 
Agenda - General Meeting

PUBLIC
Friday, May 26, 2017

9:30 a.m.

Auditorium

Grand River Conservation Authority 

400 Clyde Road, Box 729 

Cambridge, ON N1R 5W6

Pages

1. Call to Order

2. Roll Call and Certification of Quorum – 13 Members constitute a quorum (1/2 of
Members appointed by participating Municipalities)

3. Chair’s Remarks

4. Review of Agenda

5. Declarations of Pecuniary Interest

6. Minutes of the Previous Meetings

7. Business Arising from Previous Minutes

8. Hearing of Delegations

9. Presentations

a. Grand River Conservation Foundation

Sara Wilbur will provide a presentation demonstrating the role of the GRCF.

10. Correspondence

a. Mohawks of the Grand River - Repossession of Mohawk Lands 12

11. 1st and 2nd Reading of By-Laws



12. Reports:

a. GM-05-17-50 - Cash and Investment Status 20

b. GM-05-17-55 - Financial Summary 23

c. GM-05-17-52 - Quarterly Permit Report - Revised Format 26

d. GM-05-17-56 - Environmental Assessments 28

e. GM-05-17-51 - Grand River Water Management Plan: 2016 Report on Actions  30

f. GM-05-17-59 - Beach Management in GRCA Conservation Areas 42

g. GM-05-17-53 - Grand Trails Project Update 44

h. GM-05-17-58 - Parkhill Dam Hydro Project Update 47

i. GM-05-17-57 - Current Watershed Conditions 49

13. Committee of the Whole

14. General Business

15. 3rd Reading of By-Laws

16. Other Business

17. Closed Meeting

a. Minutes of the previous confidential meeting of April 28, 2017

b. Hockeyfest Litigation Update

18. Next Meetings

19. Adjourn



20. Grand River Source Protection Authority Meeting

Regrets only to:

Office of the Chief Administrative Officer,  Phone: 519-621-2763 ext. 2200



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



Grand River Conservation Authority 

Report number: GM-05-17-50 

Date: May 26, 2017 

To: Members of the Grand River Conservation Authority 

Subject: Cash and Investments Status Report as at April 30, 2017 

Recommendation: 

THAT Report Number GM-05-17-50 – Cash and Investments Status Report as of April 30, 2017 
be received as information. 

Summary: 

The cash position including Notes Receivable of the Grand River Conservation Authority as at 
April 30, 2017 was $26,680,299 with outstanding cheques written in the amount of $406,494. 

These funds were invested in accordance with the guidelines adopted by the General 
Membership. 

Report: 

Attached. 

Financial implications: 

Interest rates, etc. are shown on the report. 

Other department considerations: 

Not applicable. 

 

Prepared by: Approved by: 

Carol Anne Johnston 
Senior Accountant 

Keith Murch 
Assistant CAO/Secretary-Treasurer 

Sonja Radoja 
Manager of Corporate Services 

20



 

21



Date Invested Location Type Amount Rate Maturity 2017

C.I.B.C. Current Account 2,643,222 2% Below Average Prime or .70%

Wood Gundy Current Account -                    0.20%

C.I.B.C. Property Account 12,324

C.I.B.C. SPP Account 427,755 2% Below Average Prime or .70%

C.I.B.C. U.S. 10,268

C.I.B.C. PayPal Account 15,870

C.I.B.C. Call Centre 30,984

Royal Bank Conestogo 5,080

Royal Bank Brant 6,165

Royal Bank Luther 5,977

3,157,645

September 9, 2009 CIBC Renaissance Account 2,260,064 0.75% 12,771

October 1, 2014 CIBC Trust Savings Account 2,778,910 0.75% 15,703

July 15, 2016 One Investment Savings Account 4,026,634 1.15% 34,888

November 8, 2012 National Bank Bond 1,940,000 2.69% August 21, 2017 20,684

June 6, 2013 Royal Bank Bond 1,000,000 2.26% March 12, 2018 17,318

November 7, 2013 Bank of Montreal Bond 1,746,000 2.24% December 11, 2017 37,462

May 5, 2014 Royal Bank Bond 987,000 2.26% March 12, 2018 15,900

December 8, 2014 Laurentian Bank Bond 1,578,000 2.81% June 13, 2019 37,241

January 28, 2015 CIBC Bond 726,046 1.80% May 15, 2019 13,069

September 3, 2015 CIBC Bond 2,000,000 2.15% September 3, 2025 36,526

October 14, 2015 Laurentian Bank Bond 1,996,000 2.50% January 23, 2020 49,000

March 1, 2016 CIBC Bond 1,300,000 1.70% March 1, 2023 19,010

September 16, 2016 CIBC Bond 1,184,000 1.30% March 13, 2020 12,356

Total G.R.C.A. Investments 23,522,654 321,928

G.R.C.A. Funds 26,680,299

Outstanding Cheques 406,494                                                                                                                                   

% of Total Portfolio % of Total Portfolio

Government 0% Gov't of Canada 0%

Province of Ontario 0%

Banks 83% C.I.B.C. 44%

Bank of Nova Scotia 0%

Bank of Montreal 7%

Royal Bank 8%

Toronto Dominion 0%

National 8%

Laurentian 15%

Other 17% One Investment Program 17%

Cash and Investments Status Report

Grand River Conservation Authority

April 30, 2017

Investment By Category and Institution

22



 

 

Grand River Conservation Authority 

Report number: GM-05-17-55 

Date: May 26, 2017 

To: Members of the Grand River Conservation Authority 

Subject: Financial Summary for the Period Ending April 30, 2017  

Recommendation: 

THAT the Financial Summary for the period ending April 30, 2017 be approved. 

Summary: 

The Financial Summary includes the 2017 actual income and expenditures. The budget 
approved at the February 24, 2017 General Meeting is included in the Budget column.  The 
Current Forecast column will indicate an estimate of income and expenditures for the whole 
year. Any changes between the Current Forecast and the Previous Forecast will be discussed 
during the meeting. At this time a surplus of $NIL at year-end is anticipated. 

Report: 

The Financial Summary is attached. 

Financial implications: 

The activity summarized will result in a NIL net result at December 31, 2017. 

Other department considerations: 

The management committee and appropriate supervisory staff receive monthly financial reports 
and advise the finance department of applicable forecast adjustments. 

Prepared by: Approved by: 

Sonja Radoja 
Manager Corporate Services 

Keith Murch 
Assistant CAO/Secretary-Treasurer 

 

23



Actual Budget Actual Previous Current Forecast

SCHEDULE 2016 2017 YTD Forecast Forecast Change

REVENUE

Municipal

General Municipal Levy (Operating) various 9,809,000 10,025,000 3,341,666 10,025,000 10,025,000 0

General Municipal Levy (Capital) various 1,000,000 1,050,000 350,000 1,050,000 1,050,000 0

Special Municipal Levy various 113,499 150,000 18,486 150,000 150,000 0

Other various 977,680 800,000 1,039,723 800,000 800,000 0

11,900,179 12,025,000 4,749,875 12,025,000 12,025,000 0

Government Grants

MNR Transfer Payments various 871,073 871,073 0 871,073 871,073 0

Source Protection Program-Provincial various 1,159,446 835,000 624,398 1,970,000 1,970,000 0

Other Provincial various 955,572 1,147,500 656,288 1,147,500 1,147,500 0

Federal various 187,159 289,500 252,786 289,500 289,500 0

3,173,250 3,143,073 1,533,472 4,278,073 4,278,073 0

Self Generated

User Fees and Sales

Enquiries and Permits 4 511,202 428,500 140,551 428,500 428,500 0

Plan Input and Review 4 411,561 398,000 113,162 398,000 398,000 0

Nursery and Woodlot Management 5 502,611 515,000 216,852 515,000 515,000 0

Consulting 4 0 0 3,726 0 0 0

Conservation Lands Income 10 59,091 71,000 2,151 71,000 71,000 0

Conservation Areas User Fees 13 8,533,069 7,300,000 461,708 7,300,000 7,300,000 0

Nature Centres and Camps 8 876,797 876,500 184,136 876,500 876,500 0

Merchandising and Sales 8 3,647 0 644 0 0 0

Property Rentals 11 3,082,548 2,929,700 1,425,028 2,929,700 2,929,700 0

Hydro Generation 12 487,033 470,000 98,916 470,000 470,000 0

Land Sales 10 408,750 0 0 0 0 0

Grand River Conservation Foundation various 676,104 559,500 50,962 559,500 559,500 0

Donations various 126,728 244,000 277,104 244,000 244,000 0

Landowner Contributions 5 193,448 300,000 126,472 300,000 300,000 0

Investment Income 14 443,137 450,000 58,192 450,000 450,000 0

Miscellaneous Income various 55,333 48,000 913 48,000 48,000 0

Total Self-Generated Revenue 16,371,059 14,590,200 3,160,517 14,590,200 14,590,200 0

TOTAL REVENUE 31,444,488 29,758,273 9,443,864 30,893,273 30,893,273 0

GRAND RIVER CONSERVATION AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING April 30, 2017

24



Actual Budget Actual Previous Current Forecast

SCHEDULE 2016 2017 YTD Forecast Forecast Change

GRAND RIVER CONSERVATION AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING April 30, 2017

EXPENSES

OPERATING

Water Resources Planning & Environment 1 1,908,913 2,181,300 651,012 2,181,300 2,181,300 0

Flood Forecasting and Warning 2 692,104 780,300 222,473 780,300 780,300 0

Water Control Structures 3 1,570,819 1,678,900 527,584 1,678,900 1,678,900 0

Resource Planning 4 1,796,981 1,922,900 510,162 1,922,900 1,922,900 0

Forestry & Conservation Land Property Taxes 5 1,305,453 1,489,700 405,023 1,489,700 1,489,700 0

Conservation Services 6 758,769 837,500 216,275 837,500 837,500 0

Communications & Foundation 7 598,583 676,900 167,859 676,900 676,900 0

Environmental Education 8 1,224,383 1,245,800 348,777 1,245,800 1,245,800 0

Corporate Services 9 2,882,470 3,244,705 879,829 3,244,705 3,244,705 0

Conservation Lands 10 1,980,934 1,926,200 648,146 1,926,200 1,926,200 0

Property Rentals 11 1,766,373 1,797,900 421,593 1,797,900 1,797,900 0

Hydro Production 12 211,224 65,000 58,236 65,000 65,000 0

Conservation Areas 13 6,671,933 6,550,000 1,188,405 6,550,000 6,550,000 0

Miscellaneous 14 45,814 70,000 13,915 70,000 70,000 0

Information Systems 16 1,071,038 1,105,000 422,861 1,105,000 1,105,000 0

Motor Pool 16 802,874 888,400 233,424 888,400 888,400 0

Less: Internal Charges (IS & MP) 16 (1,873,912) (1,993,400) (656,285) (1,993,400) (1,993,400) 0

Total OPERATING Expenses 23,414,753 24,467,105 6,259,289 24,467,105 24,467,105 0

CAPITAL

Water Resources Planning & Environment 1 52,167 110,000 34,167 110,000 110,000 0

Flood Forecasting and Warning 2 119,443 190,000 25,455 190,000 190,000 0

Water Control Structures 3 1,044,865 1,500,000 270,363 1,500,000 1,500,000 0

Nature Centres 8 0 0 0 0 0 0

Conservation Areas 13 771,510 683,000 199,173 683,000 683,000 0

Corporate Services 9 0 0 0 0 0 0

Information Systems 16 178,349 250,000 56,941 250,000 250,000 0

Motor Pool 16 348,660 300,000 41,011 300,000 300,000 0

Less: Internal Charges (IS & MP) 16 (478,902) (369,600) (331,197) (369,600) (369,600) 0

Total Capital Expenses 2,036,092 2,663,400 295,913 2,663,400 2,663,400 0

SPECIAL

Water Resources Planning & Environment 1 301,587 203,000 61,569 203,000 203,000 0

Flood Forecasting and Warning 2 170,975 200,000 80,494 200,000 200,000 0

Forestry 5 80,614 200,000 47,567 200,000 200,000 0

Conservation Services 6 1,154,929 983,000 413,336 983,000 983,000 0

Communications 7 0 0 0 0 0 0

Environmental Education 8 262,426 220,000 245,414 220,000 220,000 0

Conservation Land Purchases 10 67,239 0 26,530 0 0 0

Conservation Lands 10 396,830 587,000 44,502 587,000 587,000 0

Property Development 11 0 50,000 0 50,000 50,000 0

Hydro Generation 12 0 200,000 0 200,000 200,000 0

Miscellaneous 14 29,824 35,000 788 35,000 35,000 0

Source Protection Program 15 1,159,446 835,000 624,398 1,970,000 1,970,000 0

Total SPECIAL PROJECTS Expenses 3,623,870 3,513,000 1,544,598 4,648,000 4,648,000 0

Total Expenses 29,074,715 30,643,505 8,099,800 31,778,505 31,778,505 0

Gross Surplus 2,369,773 (885,232) 1,344,064 (885,232) (885,232) 0

Prior Year Surplus Carryforward 429,618 315,832 315,832 315,832 315,832 0

Net Funding FROM/(TO) Reserves (2,483,559) 569,400 0 569,400 569,400 0

NET SURPLUS 315,832 0 1,659,896 0 0 0

25



Grand River Conservation Authority  

Report Number: GM-05-17-52 

Date: May 16, 2017 

To: Members of the Grand River Conservation Authority 

Subject: Quarterly Permit Reports – Revised Format 

Recommendation: 
THAT Report GM-05-17-52 Proposed Development, Interference with Wetlands and Alterations  
to Shorelines and Watercourses Regulation Permit Report Summary be received for information. 

Summary: Not applicable 

Report: 
 
In 2012 the Province approved an amendment to Ontario Regulation 150/06 that enabled staff approval 
of GRCA permits. The approval authority for permits that conform to Board approved policy was 
delegated to the Chief Administrative Officer at that time.  A monthly report of the approved permits 
has been presented to the Membership for information. 
 
On April 28th, 2017 the General Membership passed the following motion: 
 

“THAT the Development, Interference with Wetlands and Alterations to Shorelines 
reports be removed as a monthly report, and be added as a quarterly report which will 
include an overview of data segregated by municipality.” 

 
The format would summarize the information provided to the membership in a quarterly report, with 
the number of permits issued broken down by lower tier municipality (see below).  This would result in 
fewer reports and a more efficient permit process. 
 
Staff are proposing quarterly reports provided the month following the quarter as follows: 
 

Quarter Jan., Feb., Mar. Apr., May, June July, Aug., Sept. Oct., Nov., Dec. 

Board Meeting April July October January 

 
The proposed report format would contain the following information:  

 
           
 
 
 

26



    Quarterly Permit Report - 2017 Q1 
 

 Municipality Total 
 City of Brantford 7 
 City of Cambridge 17 
 City of Guelph 4 
 City of Hamilton 10 
 City of Kitchener 9 
 City of Waterloo 6 
 County of Brant 15 
 Haldimand County 12 
 Town of Erin 5 
 Town of Milton 1 
 Township of Amaranth 5 
 Township of Blandford-Blenheim 1 
 Township of Centre Wellington 11 
 Township of East Garafraxa 1 
 Township of Guelph-Eramosa 6 
 Township of Mapleton 9 
 Township of Melancthon 1 
 Township of North Dumfries 7 
 Township of Perth East 1 
 Township of Puslinch 14 
 Township of Southgate 1 
 Township of Wellesley 4 
 Township of Wilmot 5 
 Township of Woolwich 2 
 Total permits:  155 

Financial implications: 
 
None 

Other department considerations: 
 
Not applicable  

Prepared by: Approved by: 

Beth Brown 
Supervisor of Resource Planning 

Fred Natolochny 
Supervisor of Resource Planning 

Nancy Davy 
Director of Resource Management 

 
 

27



 

 

Grand River Conservation Authority 

Report number: GM-05-17-56 

Date: May 26, 2017 

To: Members of the Grand River Conservation Authority 

Subject: Environmental Assessments 

Recommendation: 

THAT Report GM-05-17-56 - Environmental Assessments be received as information.  

Summary: 

To provide the General Membership of the Grand River Conservation Authority with information 
on Environmental Assessments being reviewed, a summary report is presented below. The 
report has been prepared as directed through Motion No. P44-99 (May 18/99) adopted through 
General Membership Res. No. 55-99 (May 28, 1999). 

Report: 

Report on Environmental Assessments for May 26, 2017.  

A. New Environmental Assessments Received  

New:  Environmental Assessments received by the Grand River Conservation Authority and 
currently under review. 

None for this report 

B. Classification of Reviewed Environmental Assessments 

Minor:  Minimal potential resource impacts that can be mitigated using conventional 
construction methods. 

Major:  Significant impacts on identified resource features.  Alternatives and proposed 
mitigation will be outlined in detail. 

Minor Impacts: 

Final Notice- Ancaster Elevated Water Reservoir, City of Hamilton  

The City of Hamilton has finalized the Ancaster Elevated Water Reservoir Schedule ‘B’ Class 
Environmental Assessment to determine the preferred location to construct an elevated water 
reservoir within the study area.  The preferred general area for the elevated water reservoir is 
southwest of the Fiddler’s Green Road and Garner Road intersection. Twelve sites within this 
general area have been identified, and final site selection will be made dependent on the 
outcome of additional studies and investigations.  Two of the twelve sites under consideration 
have GRCA regulated features; however there appears to be sufficient space outside the 
regulated areas to construct an elevated water tower. 

 

28



 

 

Major Impacts: None for this report 

Financial implications: 

Not Applicable. 

Other department considerations: 

Not Applicable.  

 

Prepared by: Approved by: 

Beth Brown  
Supervisor of Resource Planning 

Nancy Davy 
Director of Resource Management 

 

29



 

 

Grand River Conservation Authority 

Report number: GM-05-17-51 

Date: May 16, 2017 

To: Management Committee /GRCA Board May 26, 2017 

Subject: Grand River Water Management Plan:  2016 Report on Actions   

Recommendation: 

THAT report GM-05-17-51 - Grand River Water Management Plan:  2016 Report on 
Actions be received as information. 

Summary: 

N/A 

Report: 

The Grand River Water Management Plan as endorsed in 2014.  The Plan compiles actions from 
14 partners that will advance efforts to achieve the following goals:  

1. Improve water quality to improve river health and reduce the river’s impact on Lake 
Erie.   

2. Ensure water supplies for communities, economies and ecosystems   
3. Reduce flood damage potential  
4. Build resilience to deal with climate change.  

Partners include municipalities of the Grand River watershed, three provincial ministries, one 
federal department and the Six Nations of the Grand River Territory.   

Since 2014, members of the Water Managers Working Group – a committee of senior staff 
representing partner organizations, meet quarterly to share their progress of implementing the 
actions identified in the Plan.   Every year, the Water Managers Working Group prepares a 
“Report on Actions” that summarizes completed actions implemented by partners and tracks 
the progress of Plan Implementation.   

The “Report on Actions” is presented to the Grand River Implementation Committee – a 
committee of executive staff from partner organizations who champion the plan in the 
respective organizations, address barriers to implementation and advocate for continuous 
improvement to achieve the goals of the Plan.  This year, the Implementation Committee met 
on May 2, 2017, reviewed and approved the report.  

Attached is the annual report for 2016.   

Financial implications: 

In 2016, expenses of $82,000 were incurred for consulting services ($68,000) and staff costs 
($14,000) related to implementing the Water Management Plan. External funding was received 
from Ontario Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Rural Affairs (OMAFRA) ($60,000) and 

30



 

 

Environment and Climate Change Canada ($22,000). The OMAFRA Funding was in support of a 
pilot project to apply a soil erosion prediction tool in Ontario and Environment and Climate 
Change Canada funding was for general support of the plan. 

Other department considerations: 

Staff from the Engineering and Resource Management Divisions, and Geomatics Departments 
work together to advance the actions in the Plan on behalf of GRCA.   

 

Prepared by:  

Sandra Cooke  

Senior Water Quality Supervisor  

 

Attachments: 2016 Report on Actions  

 

31



2016 Report on Actions 

32



 
 

Partners 

Municipalities of the Grand River watershed 
including: 

- Township of Centre Wellington 
- City of Guelph 
- Regional Municipality of Waterloo 
- City of Waterloo 
- City of Kitchener 
- City of Cambridge 
- County of Brant 
- Oxford County 
- City of Branford 
- Haldimand County 

Six Nations of the Grand River 
Grand River Conservation Authority 
Ministry of the Environment and Climate 

Change  
Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry  
Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Rural 

Affairs 
Environment and Climate Change Canada 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Water Managers Working Group, a committee 
of senior staff from partner organizations, prepares 
this progress report annually and presents it to the 
Grand River Implementation Committee – an 
Executive Committee who oversees the progress of 
implementing the actions in the Grand River Water 
Management Plan.     

May 2017

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contents  

Summary  ................................................................ 1 

Collaboration & Partnerships ................................. 1 

A Changing Climate ................................................. 2 

Planning for Extremes  ............................................ 2 

Adaptation in Action  .............................................. 3 

Building Resilience  ................................................. 5 

Continuous Improvement  ...................................... 7 

Summary of Progress  ............................................. 8 

33



Summary 

The 2016 Report on Actions marks the third 

progress report summarizing the status of partner 

actions since the Plan was endorsed in 2014.  

Implementation continues with most partners 

continuing to meet quarterly to share their progress 

of implementing their actions.  

Emphasis was on updating floodplain mapping and 

modelling tools – two very important adaptation 

strategies to ensure preparedness for extreme 

events.  In February, researchers from the 

University of Waterloo highlighted research that 

illustrated increased frequency of weather 

extremes and the need to adapt to the changing 

conditions.   

Stormwater management was highlighted in 2016 

with a great deal of planning and work undertaken 

at the local municipal level in Kitchener, Waterloo, 

Cambridge, and Guelph.  Evaluating actions for 

reducing both nonpoint sources and point sources 

to ensure water quality was a focus in April.   

September’s meeting was the annual joint meeting 

of policy planners and water managers.  Municipal 

Affairs attended the meeting to get feedback on the 

coordinated review of Provincial Plans.  

Securing water supplies was highlighted at the 

December meeting.  Tier III water budgets for the 

Region of Waterloo and Guelph area have provided 

a great deal of technical information for decision-

making to ensure future water supplies.  

Population growth and development pressures 

continue especially in the headwater region:  

Centre Wellington is continuing to see rapid 

development while Mapleton, Wellington North 

and Southgate all have projects underway to 

determine how to expand their wastewater 

treatment plants. A new wastewater treatment 

plant is also being reviewed in the headwaters and 

Brant County and Brantford finalized their 

municipal boundaries. 

 

Collaboration & Partnerships  

Water Managers continued to meet quarterly in  

2016.  Municipal policy planners and the Ministry of 

Municipal Affairs joined water managers in 

September for the annual joint meeting.  

Many watershed issues require a collaborative 

effort to understand and develop best value 

solutions.  The contribution of nutrients and 

sediment to the central Grand River region is one of 

these issues.  To address this, the cities of 

Kitchener, Waterloo, Region of Waterloo, GRCA, 

and the University of Waterloo collaborated on a 

study evaluating existing monitoring efforts to 

determine whether contributing areas can be 

identified.  Another key outcome of this work was 

the need to integrate monitoring efforts better to 

use existing data and effort more efficiently. 

ECCC provided some project funding to the GRCA to 

continue to facilitate the implementation of the 

Water Management Plan and to ensure alignment 

with the Lake Erie Lakewide Action and 

Management Plan.   

  

1 
34



A Changing Climate  

2016 was a moderate to severe low water year.  

Precipitation was low and evaporation was high but 

sufficient groundwater levels helped to add flow to 

the rivers. It was the first year of significant low 

water conditions since the Drought Contingency 

plan was written in 2014.    

Reservoirs were used extensively to augment river 

flows in the summer considering the hot and dry 

conditions.  Generally, low flow targets were met 

during the summer – the most sensitive time for 

aquatic life.  River low flow targets were not met 

during the fall as water was being held back to 

ensure supplies over the winter months.     

Proactive water management and conservation 

programs have built resiliency in the watershed to 

handle low water conditions.  Municipal water 

conservation bylaws (e.g. outdoor lawn watering) 

have helped to reduce the peak water use during 

the summer period.   

Planning for Extremes  

Flood mitigation requires solid policies to protect 

life and property.  Special policy areas are being 

reviewed in downtown Waterloo (Laurel Creek) and 

Cambridge (Groff Mill Creek) for managing risk.  

MOECC continues to maintain and improve  an 

inventory of water taking permits and actual water 

use across the province. Work continues on the  

Grand River Tier III Water Budget which has the 

potential to inform permitting.  

MNRF provided funding to GRCA to complete pilot 

projects to test new technologies and approaches 

to deliver floodplain mapping. These pilot projects 

will create base mapping used to define the extent 

of flooding to better assess flood risk and to adapt 

the United States Army Corps of Engineers 

hydrology and forecasting models for use in 

Ontario. 

 

Safety studies and routine maintenance on GRCA 

dams is an on-going commitment.  GRCA completed 

19 cost-shared projects in 2016 to ensure dams are 

safe and functioning properly.  GRCA in consultation 

with MNRF finalized a Dam Safety review 

investigating the ability of the Conestogo Dam to 

pass the inflow design flood.  A significant outcome 

of this study was the determination that an 

emergency spillway at Conestogo Reservoir is not 

required at this time.  

Waterloo with support from the GRCA is updating 

floodplain mapping along Laurel Creek. GRCA 

initiated the Laurel Creek Dam Safety Review to 

align with the city’s floodplain mapping study to be 

efficient. New approaches were used to update the 

hydrology upstream of Laurel Creek Dam to better 

reflect water storage on the landscape. MNRF 

provided funding to the University of Waterloo’s 

Intact Centre to estimate the economic value of 

wetlands in the Laurel Creek watershed.    

 

Water management reservoirs provided 

much of the flow in the Grand River in 

the summer of 2016 

 

 
 

2 35



Adaptation in Action  

Municipal master planning processes help to 

determine infrastructure requirements over the 

long-term.  Investing in adequate infrastructure is a 

major component to adapting to a changing 

climate.  In the watershed, the Region of Waterloo 

continues to invest in upgrades at the Kitchener 

and Waterloo wastewater plants and the cities of 

Waterloo and Kitchener are continuing to invest in 

stormwater management.   

The Region of Waterloo’s Wastewater Master Plan 

is ongoing with revised population projections to 

account for the current growth and building 

flexibility to meet Places to Grow forecasts.  

Further, various technologies are being evaluated to 

assess their ability to support expansion and 

upgrade in the future with minimal new 

construction and reduced energy requirements. 

Kitchener’s Stormwater Management Plan update 

was completed in May.  Through their stormwater 

utility credit program, Kitchener has engaged 

thousands of residents and almost 200 businesses 

in managing rain where it falls.  Guelph approved a 

stormwater funding model in 2016 while 

Cambridge is working to determine what funding 

requirements are needed for improved stormwater 

management.  Brantford started to update their 

Stormwater Master Plan due to city’s boundary 

adjustments and Waterloo began their SWM 

master plan update in the fall.     

Water managers are committed to continuous 

improvement for managing spills and bypasses.  

Best practices are in place and are reviewed 

annually to ensure proper information is conveyed 

to drinking water treatment plants for decision 

making.  The MOECC reported that the volume of 

high-risk (e.g. raw sewage) spills has decreased 

substantially since 2008.   

 

On behalf of Brant, Brantford, Waterloo, 

Wellington, Guelph, Haldimand, and Oxford, the 

GRCA connected with over 2,100 landowners 

through various workshops, farm meetings and on 

farm site visits.  The Rural Water Quality Program 

provided $1,166,840 in grants to landowners to 

complete 415 water quality improvement projects.   

Chloride level are increasing the the river and there 

is concern over increasing chloride levels in local 

groundwater.  The Region of Waterloo and Guelph 

are continuing to evaluate alternative softener 

technology to reduce backwash volume and salt 

discharge.  Smart about Salt, and Curb the Salt 

programs continue in the Region of Waterloo. 

Wastewater master planning is continuing in Oxford 

for the Drumbo wastewater treatment plant.   

 

Flood preparedness planning ensures 

adequate and timely response  

 
GRCA prepared 35 Flood Emergency Maps 

and compiled statistics of the 

infrastructure located in the floodplain 

were summarized into a geodatabase for 

use in emergency response. 

3 36



GRCA completed an update to the surface 

hydrology layer for the entire watershed – over 

10,000 km of streams were mapped.  This data layer 

is the foundation for managing water as it provides 

the basis for updating the regulation limit mapping 

for planning for flood hazard identification and 

improves our ability to model watershed processes 

like runoff (e.g. erosion processes) and groundwater 

recharge (e.g.  Identifying closed drainage).   

OMAFRA commissioned LiDAR (Light Detection and 

Ranging imagery) for the Lake Erie basin.   This 

technology allows for the creation of Digital 

Elevation Models that can then support integrated 

landscape-hydrology modelling.   

OMAFRA and GRCA worked together to pilot a soil 

erosion prediction tool “SoilCalculator” to estimate 

in-field field erosion.  GRCA worked with University 

of Waterloo researchers to identify landscape and 

in-river erosion for Fairchild’s Creek.  These tools 

will help to identify  areas that would benefit from 

best management practices.  

ECCC, on behalf of Canada, and the U.S. have 

adopted a 40% phosphorus reduction target for the 

tributaries draining to the western and central 

basins of Lake Erie.  Due to the complexity of the 

eastern basin nearshore ecosystem, a target has not 

been set for the eastern basin.  

MOECC continues to monitor two research sites in 

the Grand River Watershed (Larches Creek and 

Smith Creek) for the Multi-Watershed Nutrient 

Study.  The GRCA and the MOECC continue to 

partner on collecting long-term ambient water 

quality data at 37 sites across the watershed.  The 

Region of Waterloo continues to monitor the 

Grand, Speed and Nith Rivers above and below their 

wastewater treatment plants to measure the 

progress of investing millions of dollars to improve 

wastewater treatment.   

Kitchener and Waterloo are working with the 

MOECC on the beneficial reuse of sediment 

captured in stormwater management ponds. 

As part of Kitchener’s new Integrated Stormwater 

Management Master Plan, revised monitoring 

recommendations were made to ensure that the 

objectives of the master plan are achieved.  

Waterloo is refocusing the Laurel Creek monitoring 

program to address stormwater performance. Both 

Kitchener and Waterloo continue to monitor high 

profile stream restoration projects (Forwell, Clair, 

and Filsinger creeks). Brantford expanded rainfall 

and stormwater flow monitoring to support a future 

update to their Master Plan. 

Region of Waterloo completed their Water Supply 

Master Plan and is now implementing the Strange 

and William Streets Environmental Assessment that 

combines two groundwater systems together at 

one treatment plant to build flexibility and 

reliability in the water supply system.  Further, the 

Cambridge Environmental Assessment will build on 

the Master Plan recommendations to bring the 

Cambridge East Water Treatment Plants to full 

capacity providing redundancy within the 

Cambridge water supply system.  

 

Urban stream restoration builds 

resilience  

 

 
“Rehabilitation of Clair Creek builds 

resilience to deal with extreme events” 

Jessica Kellerman, City of Waterloo  

4 37



MOECC is contributing to the Great Lakes 

Nearshore Framework and is supporting ECCC in 

developing a research plan for understanding 

Cladophora growth in the eastern basin of Lake Erie.  

The Lake Erie Action Plan should be final by 2018.   

New stormwater targets set in Kitchener for include 

a volumetric target of  12.5 mm and enhanced 

water quality requirements.   Waterloo completed a 

SWM Pond assessment study and has started 

cleaning out priority ponds.  

Centre Wellington is replacing the Elora mill street 

sewage pumping station to improve the operation 

of the station to safeguard against by-pass events to 

the Grand River.    

Waterloo and Guelph are using new mobile devices 

and technology to improve annual stormwater 

inspections.  This helps to streamlined data capture 

for better decision making. 

Building Resilience   

GRCA continued the development of the Grand 

River Watershed Natural Heritage Systems 

Framework in 2016.  Much of the southern Grand 

River region is complete.  

The Conservation Authorities Act has specific 

regulations for protecting land in or near rivers, 

streams, ponds, wetlands, steep slopes, 

floodplains and the Lake Erie shoreline to help 

reduce damages from flooding or erosion.  In 2016, 

GRCA reviewed 291 permits for construction in and 

around wetlands while they reviewed 187 

floodplain permits.    

OMAFRA launched the development of an 

Agricultural Soil Health and Conservation Strategy 

with a discussion paper on soil health and how it is 

linked to climate change, water quality and water 

quantity.   

 

Investing in people enhances skills and improves 

operations.  Improved process control in many 

wastewater treatment plants have improved 

effluent quality and deferred substantial capital 

costs.  Southgate Township, Wellington North, 

Centre Wellington, Region of Waterloo, Guelph, 

County of Brant, Oxford County, Brantford, and 

Haldimand County all continue to participate in the 

Watershed-wide Wastewater Optimization 

community of practice. 

The wastewater treatment plant upgrades provided 

the Region of Waterloo an opportunity to build 

resilience into infrastructure and re-engineer the 

effluent pumping stations to accommodate 

anticipated higher peak flows in the river.  They 

elevated the aeration building, motor control and 

electrical systems  at Kitchener WWTP for flood 

proofing.   

  

 

Effective sewer use bylaws help stabilize 

effluent quality in Brantford  

 
 

“Through enhanced process control, good 

data collection and an effective sewer use 

bylaw, we have been able to have better 

control of ammonia in our final effluent” 

Tim Howarth, City of Brantford  

5 38



Region of Waterloo is working on several pilots to 

optimize chemical addition to improve performance 

at the Galt WWTP related to phosphorus removal, 

tertiary filter performance and biosolids 

management. Another study is testing new 

technology to improve the secondary treatment 

and increase treatment capacity. 

Brant, Region of Waterloo, and Centre Wellington 

continue to participate in Performance Based 

Training facilitated by the MOECC to achieve 

improved effluent quality at the Paris, Hespeler and 

Elora WWTPs, respectively.  Four modules were 

held that covered process control, quantifying 

performance potential, and sludge treatment and 

handling.  

MNRF advanced work in the middle Grand River, 

from Breslau to Freeport, to determine Best Bets 

for enhancing aquatic habitat.  Re-engineering river 

form may help to enhance the functions that the 

river provides for fish and other aquatic organisms.  

It may also help to improve the river’s assimilative 

capacity.   

Research on the southern Grand River by MNRF has 

highlighted the decreasing trend of the walleye 

population.  Current methods for maintaining the 

population such as the hand transfer of fish over 

the Dunnville Dam, have limited effectiveness.  

Grand River Fish Management Plan 

Implementation Committee continued work to 

prioritize 18 GRCA-owned dams, weirs and fishways 

for further study to determine whether 

modification or removal would help support 

building in-river resilience.   

Kitchener collaborated with REEP Green Solutions 

to educate, promote and transform two residential 

neighbourhoods through the Rain Smart 

Neighbourhoods Project.  This project has already 

inspired multiple residential property owners to 

implement best practices for stormwater 

management. 

 

The Guelph and Region of Waterloo continue to 

improve their water efficiency and actively manage 

water demand through various conservation 

programs to meet future reduction goals of 138 and 

165 litres per person per day respectively.   The 

Region of Waterloo also has a certification program 

for restaurants and businesses to reduce water 

consumption.   

Guelph’s Water Loss Mitigation Strategy will help 

reduce water loss through the distribution system – 

reducing water loss is a huge ‘gain’ for ensuring 

water supplies. Similarly, Waterloo has started their 

“Smart Metering” where they can quickly identify 

leaks for maintenance.  Centre Wellington is also 

working on a leak detection project to help advance 

conservation efforts.  

Guelph is continuing to pilot Annamox  to deal with 

high ammonia from biosolids dewatering with 

success.   

Best Practices in wastewater treatment 

 

“Wastewater Operators, who are 

knowledgeable and are empowered to 

make data-based process decisions 

mitigate risk of [plant] process failure” 

Tim Robertson, City of Guelph 

 

6 39



Continuous Improvement  

Many of the actions in the Plan are underway.  

Moving water management forward is about 

balancing priorities and seizing opportunities when 

funding and capacity are available.  Some actions 

are not scheduled to start until 2019 such as a 

review of the reservoir operating policy or 

undertaking a comprehensive watershed conditions 

report.  As water management activities in the 

watershed continue by all Plan partners, it is 

important to ensure that we share information and 

build on the best practices that have already 

started. 

The following highlights the major activities over 

the next 2-3 years:  

 MOECC will be moving forward with the Low 

Impact Development Guidelines in 2017  

 Guelph is to update wastewater master plan in 

2017-18 

 Waterloo to update SWM Master Plan in 2017

 

 Region of Waterloo continues to upgrade the 

Kitchener wastewater treatment plant with the 

construction of new aeration tanks and 

secondary clarifiers and a new tertiary filter 

process by 2018 

 Centre Wellington to start a Water Supply 

Master Plan in 2017 and to be completed by 

2018 

 Region of Waterloo is planning to upgrade the 

Waterloo WWTP aeration tank in 2018 to 

support nitrification. 

 GRCA will help to facilitate the completion of 

the Watershed Conditions report for 2019 to 

evaluate the progress toward achieving the 

Plan’s goals  

 ECCC, AAFC, MOECC, OMAFRA and MNRF will 

be finalizing the Domestic Action plan for 

reducing phosphorus to Lake Erie in 2018

 

Commitment to Continuous Improvement 

 

 
 

Implementing actions as part of the Grand River Watershed Water Management 

Plan is part of a longer-term commitment by partners to improve the watershed. 

7 

40



 

8 41



Grand River Conservation Authority 

Report number: GM-05-17-59 

Date: May 26, 2017 

To: Members of the Grand River Conservation Authority 

Subject: Beach Management in GRCA Conservation Areas 

Recommendation: 

THAT Report GM-05-17-59 – Beach Management in GRCA Conservation Areas be received as 
information. 

Report: 

The Grand River Conservation Authority (GRCA) operates nine beaches at eight Conservation 
Areas.  These parks are in three public health regions – Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph, Region of 
Waterloo and Brant Public Health Units (PHUs).  Historically, GRCA and the PHUs worked 
together to sample beaches according to the Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care’s Ontario 
Public Health Standards (OPHS) and the Recreational Water Protocols (2014, 2016).   

In April, the Region of Waterloo and Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Health Units (PHU) met 
with GRCA staff to discuss and review the management of the beaches at Grand River 
Conservation Authority conservation areas. As part of a review of activities, PHU staff at all three 
Public Health Units in the watershed have decided to stop sampling GRCA beaches which is 
based on three important considerations:   

1. Water quality in natural water bodies can be highly variable due to weather conditions 
(rain, wind etc).  Consequently, PHU staff do not support the current approach of 
sampling beaches as it does not provide timely public health information for GRCA 
beach users; the decision to post or not to post the beach by signage, is based on 
bacteriological sampling conducted 24-48 hours prior to when the decision is made and 
therefore, the 

2. Current approach for posting a notice at the beach is not timely public information; and   
3. Upon review of the OPHS Recreation Water Protocol, 2016, a public beach is defined as 

a public bathing area owned and operated by a municipality to which the general public 
has access.  GRCA beaches do not constitute a municipal public beach as defined by the 
OPHS protocols;  

GRCA takes the health and safety of park patrons seriously.  This review is an opportunity for 
GRCA to review the beach program and improve the effectiveness of public safety and 
awareness.  

GRCA staff recommend that a proactive education and awareness campaign will enable park 
patrons to evaluate whether or not to participate in swimming in natural water bodies in GRCA 
parks.  

42



GRCA staff agree with PHU staff’s rationale for not supporting the current sampling and 
notification approach and recommend that the following preliminary steps be taken to 
proactively educate patrons of risks associated with swimming in natural water bodies: 

1. PHUs will develop appropriate messaging to ensure the public is educated on the 
proposed changes. GRCA staff will work with PHU staff to develop a communications 
strategy, including permanent signage and key messages, that will help patrons better 
understand observed beach conditions as well as informing them of the risk associated 
with swimming in natural water bodies; 

2. GRCA Park staff to continue to do daily beach inspections to identify and eliminate any 
hazards / issues that may cause water quality problems. This information will be logged 
as due-diligence to ensuring a clean beach.  

The PHUs are the lead agencies with respect to public health.  The ROW, WDG and Brant PHUs 
have committed to maintaining a strong working relationship with GRCA and will continue to 
take the lead in assessing public health matters.   

A follow-up report on beach management will be prepared for the June GRCA General 
membership meeting that will include a summary of the communications strategy. 

Financial implications: 

There will be cost reductions associated with eliminating sampling offset by expenses incurred 
to create new signage at beaches. There will be reduced staff time associated with collecting 
samples offset by increased staff time to monitor the beaches. Cost implications will be 
discussed in more detail in the full report in June. 

Other department considerations: 

Operational changes are expected at the conservation area which will include increase 
surveillance and housing keeping associated with the beaches. New signage will need to be 
erected at each of the beaches. 

 

Prepared by: 

 

 

Approved by: 

Sandra Cooke 
Senior Water Quality Supervisor 

Dwight Boyd, P. Eng. 
Director of Engineering 

 

 

43



Grand River Conservation Authority  

Report number: GM-05-17-53 

Date: May 26, 2017 

To: Members of the Grand River Conservation Authority 

Subject: Grand Trails Project Update 

 

 

Recommendation: 

THAT report GM-05-17-53 – Grand Trails Project Update be received as information. 

Summary: 

 

A local group of interested citizens are promoting the idea of a “Grand Trail” along the entire 

length of the Grand River. The group has been meeting with local municipalities to obtain their 

support and are proceeding towards incorporation as a not-for-profit organization. A portion of 

the future trail would follow existing rail trails owned by the GRCA. This project aligns with 

several of the GRCA Strategic Objectives and could have long-term benefits for the GRCA 

through enhanced recreational and educational opportunities. 

Report: 

 

In June 2015 staff presented a report to the General Membership regarding the establishment 

of a “Grand River Trail” which would be an interconnected, multi-use pathway following the 

Grand River from the source to the mouth. To date, involvement in the Grand Trails Project has 

included representatives from local municipalities, Regional Tourism Offices, Ontario Tourism, 

Six Nations, trail clubs, outfitters, members of the general public and the GRCA. The purpose of 

this report is to update the General Membership on the status of the Grand Trails Project and to 

highlight how the project fits with the goals of the Grand River Conservation Authority. 

 

The work of the Grand Trails Project is being done through a volunteer steering committee. 

Recently that committee developed a vision statement, values statement and project 

description. 

 

Vision Statement 

The Grand Trails project will connect people and communities through heritage, cultural and 

outdoor experiences in the Grand River watershed. 

 

Value Statements 

44



 Develop the Grand River Watershed as a living storybook of adventure by partnering 

with all stakeholders to re-connect people and communities with the Grand River and 

each other, through intertwining trails on and off the river. 

 Be inclusive of everyone and accessible to people of all ages, interests and abilities in all 

seasons. 

 Encourage community-focused cultural, heritage, educational, athletic and spiritual 

events on and around the river, acknowledging Indigenous connections with the river. 

 Encourage people to live in harmony with the environment by allowing people to 

interact with nature and educating them about the ecological diversity of the 

watershed. 

 Encourage research into the heritage and ecology of the watershed. 

 

Project Description 

The Grand Trails project will form a network of interconnected trails following the Grand 

River and its tributaries – a designated Canadian Heritage River – from the source in the 

Dundalk Highlands to the mouth of the river at Lake Erie. The network will include existing 

and new, land and water trails, to form a truly unique recreational experience. It will include 

appropriately accessible and serviced destination and experiential trails which will connect 

communities, places of interest and activities. The network will also provide connections to 

Lake Ontario, Lake Huron and Georgian Bay via other major regional trails in line with the 

Ontario Trails Strategy. 

 

The role of the Grand Trails Project group is to promote a common vision for the trail amongst 

the municipalities through which it would run. It is recognized that that the fulfillment of the 

trail vision is not possible without the involvement of the local municipalities. As a result, the 

steering committee held meetings with senior municipal staff, to gauge the reaction to the 

proposal and to get advice on how to engage municipalities in the project. Municipal staff were 

overwhelmingly positive in their response and encouraged the steering committee to present 

the project to municipal councils.  

 

Presentations have been made to the following councils, aimed at receiving council 

endorsement in principle for the project and permission for municipal staff to participate in the 

discussions: 

 County of Haldimand – Council endorsed 

 Six Nations of the Grand – Council endorsed 

 County of Brant – Council endorsed 

 City of Brantford – Council endorsed 

 Region of Waterloo – Presentation scheduled for June 1, 2017 

 City of Cambridge – Council endorsed 

 City of Kitchener – Committee endorsed; Council presentation on May 29th  

 City of Waterloo – Council endorsed 

45



 Township of Southgate – Council deferred vote; Approved staff participation 

 

The steering committee is now in the process of having letters patent and bylaws prepared in 

order to establish a not - for-profit organization. The intention is to formalize the organization of 

the group and then pursue seed funding for feasibility studies and the preparation of a formal 

project proposal. 

 

The GRCA’s involvement in this project is as a landowner (77 km of rail trail) and as the single 

organization with ties to all municipalities across the watershed. The vision and values of the 

Grand Trails Project align very well with several of the GRCA Strategic Objectives, most notably: 

 Strategic Objective 3: Connect people with the environment through outdoor 

experiences 

 Strategic Objective 5: Deliver value and innovation to our watershed stakeholders 

o Strategic Priority - “Support municipalities to develop stronger links between their 

communities, the river system and GRCA conservation areas, and to encourage 

municipalities to improve river-related links (such as trails) between communities”. 

 

A fully developed, multi-use trail along the Grand River would provide a recreational linkage 

between GRCA conservation areas and other areas of tourism interest. This could allow for a 

broader range of recreation and environmental education opportunities which would enhance 

the experience for GRCA park users and provide more expose to the conservation areas. 

 

Financial implications: 
To date the GRCA has been supporting the Grand Trails Project by providing meeting space and 

some technical support. It is not anticipated that the Grand Trails Project will be seeking any 

financial support from the GRCA. 

 

Other department considerations: 

 

None. 

 

Prepared by: Approved by: 
Dave Bennett 

Director of Operations 

Joe Farwell 

Chief Administrative Officer 

 

 

46



Grand River Conservation Authority 

Report number: GM-05-17-58 

Date: May 26, 2017 

To: Members of the Grand River Conservation Authority 

Subject: Parkhill Dam Hydro Project Update 

Recommendation: 

THAT Report No. GM-05-17-58 – Parkhill Dam Hydro Project Update be received as information. 

Report: 

In February of this year, the board approved the proposal from WSP Consultants to enter into 
agreement for the Environmental Assessment and Design of the Parkhill Dam Hydro Plant. The 
proposal includes five phases of engineering services summarized below:  

Phase 1 – Background review and update of the conceptual design prepared by Genivar 
Consultants in 2012.  

Phase 2 – Background data review, identification of data gaps and design of plan to 
collect additional field data and information required to support the Class 
Environment Assessment (EA) for Water Power projects.  

Phase 3 – Completion of the EA for water power projects and approvals for 
development of a small hydro power project at Parkhill Dam.  

Phase 4 – Detailed design, approvals, tender specifications and plans to construct a new 
hydro plant at the Parkhill Hydro site.  

Phase 5 – Assistance with tendering, review of tenders through to award of contracts. 
 
Phase 1 was completed earlier this year. During this phase, WSP reviewed previous studies by 
Acres and Genivar.  The general layout design plans were revised to reduce the number of 
turbines from two to one and the building height was reduced to not exceed the top of the 
existing flood wall. 

Phase 2 is currently underway, existing data has been reviewed and field surveys scheduled to 
obtain additional aquatic information near the site.  

Prior to initiating the EA, WSP staff recommended GRCA complete pre-consultation meetings 
with potential affected stakeholders. Pre-consultation meetings or communication have been 
held with the following stakeholders:  

 Regulating agencies (MNRF, MOECC) 

 Six Nations of the Grand River 

 City of Cambridge  

 Fisheries Management Plan Implementation Committee 

 Cambridge Mill owners 

 Owner of 20 Hobson Street, Cambridge (location of Napa Grille restaurant) 

 Energy Plus (Cambridge) 

47



The pre-consultation meetings provide information about the project and to advise stakeholders 
that an EA is about to start. Pre-consultation creates awareness so that stakeholders are not 
surprised by the notice to commence an EA.  

Pre-consultation meetings will be held with the Mississaugas of the New Credit First Nation, City 
of Cambridge Planning & Development Committee, and the Cambridge Municipal Heritage 
Advisory Committee prior to the first public information centre. 

WSP has completed the project description report to be circulated to the agencies, and a 
communication plan that details the timing and content for notifications for the EA.  

The formal announcement of the EA is scheduled to take place the last week of May or first 
week of June, 2017. The GRCA is responsible for advertising in local media and creating a project 
web page; information about the project will be displayed on the web page. An email account 
has been created for this project to receive and organize comments and feedback. The project 
email address is parkhill@grandriver.ca. 

The first Public Information Centre (PIC) meeting is being organized for Tuesday, June 27th from 
3 to 8 pm at the Cambridge Mill in the Falls room.  

The project schedule includes a second public meeting in September and a third public meeting 
in November. Depending on feedback from the public and reviews by government agencies, the 
EA for this project may be ready to file with MOECC in early 2018. 

Financial implications: 

Work described in the above is part of the consultant proposal presented in board report GM-
02-17-30 approved on February 24, 2017. Local advertising and the venue for the public meeting 
are separate costs from the consultant proposal. The Parkhill hydro project will be financed from 
land sale reserves. The Parkhill hydro budget for 2017 is $200,000.  

Other department considerations: 

Not applicable. 

 

Prepared by: 

 

 

Approved by: 

Naomi Moore 
Water Resources Project Coordinator 

Dwight Boyd, P. Eng. 
Director of Engineering 

 

48

mailto:parkhill@grandriver.ca


Grand River Conservation Authority 

Report number: GM-05-17-57 

Date: May 26, 2017 

To: Members of the Grand River Conservation Authority 

Subject: Current Watershed Conditions as of May 17, 2017 

Recommendation: 

THAT Report GM-05-17-57 – Current Watershed Conditions as of May 17, 2017 be received as 
information. 

Report: 

Precipitation 

Precipitation in the first 17 days of May has surpassed the long term average precipitation for 
the entire month.  Most of the watershed climate stations recorded a month’s worth of rain in 
the first week of May.  Much of the precipitation occurred over a 3 day period, May 3 -5, when a 
slow moving weather system delivered high amounts of rain to most of Southern Ontario.  Rain 
gauges in the Grand River watershed recorded between 60 and 75mm of rain during this period. 

April was also a wet month, with all of the watershed climate stations recording well over the 
normal monthly precipitation.  Precipitation throughout the spring period has been fairly 
uniform over the watershed with low intensity soaking rains rather than high intensity storm 
events. 

Monthly precipitation at the Shand Dam and Shades Mill climate stations from 2012 to 2017 are 
shown in Figures 1 and 2. Table 1 includes monthly and recent precipitation trends for 
watershed climate stations.  

Table 1:   Precipitation Averages at Watershed Climate Stations  

 
 

Reservoir   Monthly Precipitation          Percentage of Long Term Average

17-May Long Term Current Last Last Last Last Last

Average Full Full Three Full Six Full Twelve Full Fifteen

(mm) (mm) Month Month Months Months Months Months

Shand 83.6 79.5 105% 137% 129% 137% 107% 113%

Conestogo 85.2 82.0 104% 140% 125% 121% 99% 106%

Guelph 100.7 75.2 134% 167% 159% 147% 112% 117%

Luther 95.4 74.0 129% 154% 131% 127% 99% 108%

Woolwich 75.8 70.1 108% 167% 139% 129% 102% 109%

Laurel 93.4 80.4 116% 156% 128% 134% 107% 113%

Shades 87.2 75.4 116% 161% 150% 140% 117% 119%

Brantford 70.4 75.9 93% 149% 149% 118% 93% 101%

49



Air Temperatures 

Temperatures in May to date have been cool.  The average air temperature in the first half of 
May was 7.9 degrees at the Shand Dam climate station, which is about 3.0 degrees cooler than 
normal for this time of year and almost the same average temperature as the month of April.   

April temperatures were warmer than normal with an average temperature of 7.8 degrees.   The 
climate station at Shand Dam recorded two days in April over 20 degrees, but most daily high 
temperatures were in the low teens.  Daily low temperatures ranged from a high of 11 to a low 
of -2.5 degrees.   

Figure 3 presents recent mean monthly air temperature departures from normal recorded at 
Shand Dam. 

Lake Erie Conditions 

The level of Lake Erie continues to be well above the long term average.  The average lake level 
for the first half of April was 174.77m, which is the highest average lake level since 1998. 
Forecast water levels for Lake Erie from May 1st show that the lake level is following the higher 
forecast with levels predicted to continue to climb for the next couple of months. 

Figure 4 presents current and forecast Lake Erie level from the Canadian Hydrographic Service.  

Reservoir Conditions 

Water levels in the four large reservoirs are in their normal operating ranges.  High precipitation 
this spring has provided more than enough water to fill the reservoirs.   

The reservoirs were actively operated during the large rainfall event the first week of May.  Prior 
to the event, excess water was released from the reservoirs to ensure storage was available to 
manage high flows.  As the event progressed discharges were adjusted to balance levels in the 
reservoirs and flows downstream. 

Reservoir levels for 2017 are shown in Figures 5 and 6 for Shand Dam, Conestogo Dam, Guelph 
Dam, and Luther Dam. 

Long Range Outlook 

Environment Canada’s seasonal forecast is predicting near normal temperatures for southern 
Ontario for the next 3 months including May.  Precipitation is also forecast to be near normal for 
the May to July period for Southern Ontario. 

Flood Operations Centre Activities 

The Flood Operations Centre was very active in the first half of May.  A total of three flood 
messages were issued in the first week of May.   

On May 3rd a flood watch message was issued in anticipation of a large rainfall event that was 
forecast to deliver between 50 and 75mm of rain to the watershed.  The flood watch was 
upgraded to a flood warning with a combined message issued on May 5th.  High water levels 
resulted in the closing of low level bridges in St. Jacobs and Cambridge, and a warning for 
potential flooding in New Hamburg, Ayr and for several seasonal trailer parks along the main 
Grand River.  A combined flood termination and water safety message was issued on May 8th as 
water levels were receding throughout the watershed.  

50



The reservoirs were actively managed during the event to reduce peak flows in reaches 
downstream of the large reservoirs.  Although there is reduced flood storage available in the 
reservoirs this time of year, the limited storage was used to reduce peak flows by up to 30% 
directly downstream of the reservoirs.  Peak flows along the central Grand River were reduced 
by about 20% and in the southern Grand River by about 15%.   

Leading up to the May 3rd to 5th event many comparisons were made to the May 1974 flood. 
While conditions leading up to the recent event were similar in that the watershed was 
saturated and weather forecasts call for 75 to 100 mm of rain, much has changed since 1974 to 
improve preparedness.  

The inquiry into the 1974 flood provided 21 recommendations, all of which have been 
implemented. One of the most important recommendations from the 1974 flood inquiry was 
the review of the reservoir operating policy. The reservoir operating policy was revised after the 
1974 flood inquiry to define specific available flood control storage amounts for April 1st, May 1st 
and June 1st for the large dams operated by GRCA.  This change to the operating policy creates a 
balance between competing reservoir objectives to provide flood control and low flow 
augmentation.  

 Since 1974, real-time monitoring, real-time flood forecasting, improved delivery of flood 
warning messages, improved weather forecasts, construction of the Guelph Dam, Bridgeport 
dykes, Cambridge dykes and Brantford dykes and continued regulation of development in 
floodplains have all contributed to reducing the risk of flooding today compared to May 1974.  

GRCA staff meets annually with municipal flood co-ordinators, police and other agencies to 
review roles and responsibilities and to receive input on how to further improve the flood 
warning system.  

Our dam and dyke safety program ensure the dams and dykes are properly maintained and 
ready to manage large flood events. 

The improved weather forecasts available today and for this past event allow decisions to be 
made early and allowed tracking of the weather event. Weather radar was not available in 1974. 
Many of the weather forecasts leading up to the recent event quoted the potential 75 to 100 
mm rainfall totals; this tended to create some confusion. These totals were spread over a 3 to 4 
day period; intense local thunderstorms were not forecast as part of the event. This differed 
from the rainfall event that triggered the 1974 flood – although forecast totals were similar, the 
1974 rainfall event occurred over several hours, not days, and included intense thunderstorms.  

On Monday May 1st reservoir discharges were increased from the large dams immediately 
following the Monday rainfall event. The weather forecasts for May 3rd thru May 6th were 
closely monitored. Discharges from the large dams were held higher than normal through to the 
morning of Thursday May 4th. The higher than normal discharges leading up to May 4th created 
available reservoir storage needed to manage May 3rd to 6th event. Reservoir discharges were 
reduced on Thursday May 4th, reducing discharges that morning created space in the river 
downstream of the dams ahead of the incoming rainfall. This space in the river was needed to 
accommodate runoff from areas downstream of the reservoirs. We continued to monitor the 
weather forecasts through the event. Our flood forecast model helped inform decisions, and 
plans were made to staff the office 24-7 to manage the event; fortunately rainfall totals were 
less than forecast and major flooding did not result from this event.  

Staff were in contact with flood co-ordinators prior and during the recent event, providing 
briefing and keeping them informed. The GRCA website provided an important role delivering 
real time information to flood co-ordinators and the general public.  

51



The proactive management of this event coupled with the many changes implemented since the 
1974 flood and continued regulation of development in floodplains all contributed to reduce the 
impacts of flooding from the recent event.  

Flood Preparedness  

Conditions are being monitored closely. Staff continue to hold weekly Senior Operator meetings 
as part of overall succession planning initiatives and flood emergency preparedness 

Spring inspections of all GRCA owned water control structures have begun and will continue 
over the next two months.    

Financial implications: 

Not applicable 

Other department considerations: 

Not applicable 

 

Prepared by: 

 

Approved by: 

Stephanie Shifflett 
Water Resources Engineer 

Dwight Boyd 
Director of Engineering 

 

  

52



Figure 1:  Precipitation at Shand Dam 2012 to present 

 

 

Figure 2:   Precipitation at Shades Mill Dam 2011 to present 

 

  

0

25

50

75

100

125

150

175

200

Jan-12 Jul-12 Jan-13 Jul-13 Jan-14 Jul-14 Jan-15 Jul-15 Jan-16 Jul-16 Jan-17 Jul-17

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

re
c
ip

it
a
it

o
n

 (
m

m
)

Date

Shand Dam Monthly Precipitation 2012- 2017
As of May 17, 2017

Monthly Precipitation Long Term Average

0

25

50

75

100

125

150

175

200

225

Jan-11 Jan-12 Jan-13 Jan-14 Jan-15 Jan-16 Jan-17

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

re
c
ip

it
a
it

o
n

 (
m

m
)

Date

Shades Mill Dam Monthly Precipitation 2011- 2016
As of May 17, 2017

Monthly Precipitation Long Term Average

53



Figure 3:  Departures from Average Air Temperatures 

 

Figure 4:  Forecasted Lake Erie Levels 

 

-10

-8

-6

-4

-2

0

2

4

6

8

10

J
a
n

-0
6

J
a
n

-0
7

J
a
n

-0
8

J
a
n

-0
9

J
a
n

-1
0

J
a
n

-1
1

J
a
n

-1
2

J
a
n

-1
3

J
a
n

-1
4

J
a
n

-1
5

J
a
n

-1
6D

e
p

a
rt

u
re

s
 F

ro
m

 A
v
e
ra

g
e

 M
o

n
th

ly
 A

ir
 T

e
m

p
e
ra

tu
re

  
 (

 o
C

 )

Date

Departures From Average Monthly Air Temperature at Shand Dam 
2006 - 2017

Mean Monthly Temperature Departure (C)

54



Figure 5:  Shand and Conestogo Reservoir Elevation Plots 

 

 

  

408.0

410.0

412.0

414.0

416.0

418.0

420.0

422.0

424.0

426.0

1
-J

a
n

3
1
-J

a
n

2
-M

a
r

1
-A

p
r

1
-M

a
y

3
1
-M

a
y

3
0
-J

u
n

3
0
-J

u
l

2
9
-A

u
g

2
8
-S

e
p

2
8
-O

c
t

2
7
-N

o
v

2
7
-D

e
c

L
a

k
e
 E

le
v
a
ti

o
n

 (
m

)

Date

Shand Dam Reservoir Elevation Plot 2017

Shand Upper Buffer Shand Lower Buffer 2017

370.0

372.0

374.0

376.0

378.0

380.0

382.0

384.0

386.0

388.0

390.0

392.0

394.0

396.0

1
-J

a
n

3
1
-J

a
n

2
-M

a
r

1
-A

p
r

1
-M

a
y

3
1
-M

a
y

3
0
-J

u
n

3
0
-J

u
l

2
9
-A

u
g

2
8
-S

e
p

2
8
-O

c
t

2
7
-N

o
v

2
7
-D

e
c

L
a
k
e
 E

le
v
a
ti

o
n

 (
m

)

Date

Conestogo Dam Reservoir Elevation Plot 2017

Conestogo Upper Buffer Conestogo Lower Buffer 2017

55



Figure 6:  Guelph and Luther Reservoir Elevation Plots 

 

 

Luther Dam Operating Curves 

Luther Dam primarily provides a flow augmentation function to the upper Grand River and to 
Shand Dam.  While it does provide some benefits from a flood control perspective, these 
benefits are limited due to the small drainage area regulated by Luther Dam. 

The buffers between March 1st and September 30th define the operating range to meet 
downstream low flow targets.  The lower buffer defines the lowest operating range for flow 
augmentation before reducing downstream flow augmentation targets. The earlier winter 
(January 1st to March 1st) and late fall (October 1st to December 31st) upper buffer curve is 
defined from ecologic considerations from the Luther Marsh Master Plan. The upper operating 
limit defines the maximum operating level from a dam safety perspective. 

 

340.0

342.0

344.0

346.0

348.0

350.0

1
-J

a
n

3
1
-J

a
n

2
-M

a
r

1
-A

p
r

1
-M

a
y

3
1
-M

a
y

3
0
-J

u
n

3
0
-J

u
l

2
9
-A

u
g

2
8
-S

e
p

2
8
-O

c
t

2
7
-N

o
v

2
7
-D

e
c

L
a

k
e
 E

le
v
a
ti

o
n

 (
m

)

Date

Guelph Dam Reservoir Elevation Plot 2017

Guelph Upper Buffer Guelph Lower Buffer 2017

480.0

480.3

480.5

480.8

481.0

481.3

481.5

481.8

482.0

482.3

482.5

1
-J

a
n

3
1
-J

a
n

2
-M

a
r

1
-A

p
r

1
-M

a
y

3
1
-M

a
y

3
0
-J

u
n

3
0
-J

u
l

2
9
-A

u
g

2
8
-S

e
p

2
8
-O

c
t

2
7
-N

o
v

2
7
-D

e
c

L
a

k
e
 E

le
v
a
ti

o
n

 (
m

)

Date

Luther Dam Reservoir Elevation Plot 2017

Luther Upper Buffer Luther Lower Buffer 2017 Luther Upper Operating Limit

56



Table 2:   May 3rd to May 6th 2017 Flood Event Summary  
 

 

57


	Agenda
	6. Minutes of the Previous Meetings
	10.a Mohawks of the Grand River - Repossession of Mohawk Lands
	12.a GM-05-17-50 - Cash and Investment Status
	12.a GM-05-17-50 - Cash and Investment Status
	12.b GM-05-17-55 - Financial Summary
	12.b GM-05-17-55 - Financial Summary
	12.c GM-05-17-52 - Quarterly Permit Report - Revised Format
	12.d GM-05-17-56 - Environmental Assessments
	12.e GM-05-17-51 - Grand River Water Management Plan: 2016 Report on Actions  
	12.e GM-05-17-51 - Grand River Water Management Plan: 2016 Report on Actions  
	12.f GM-05-17-59 - Beach Management in GRCA Conservation Areas
	12.g GM-05-17-53 - Grand Trails Project Update
	12.h GM-05-17-58 - Parkhill Dam Hydro Project Update
	12.i GM-05-17-57 - Current Watershed Conditions

